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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Gateway East India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Gateway East India Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive
income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Empbhasis of Matter — Impact of Outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19)

We draw your attention to Note 31 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements, which describes the
management’s assessment of the impact of the uncertainties related to outbreak of COVID-19 on the business
operations of the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of Matter — Recoverability of MAT credit

We draw attention to Note 7 of the Ind AS financial statements, regarding recognition of Rs.2,054 lakhs of MAT
credit by the Company based on its assessments. The management based on the future business plans believes
that the Company will be able to utilize the MAT credit accordingly no provision has been made in the books of
accounts.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statemnents in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, bas
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on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in

a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

1.

2.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

()

(®)

©

(d)

(e)

®

(2)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accountin g Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended,;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

*With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements — Refer Note 26 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. ~ There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

NP el

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 96766
UDIN: 20096766 AAAAAX4664
Place of Signature: Faridabad
Date: June 05, 2020
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Gateway East India Private Limited (“‘the Company”)

()

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

(®)

properties, included in property, plant and equipments are held in the name of the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services
of the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to
duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.
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(c) According to the records of the company, the dues of income-tax on account of dispute, are as follows:

Amount Amount Period to
Nature of paid under| which the | Forum where
Name of statue (Rs. . . .
Dues protest (Rs.| amount dispute is pending
lakhs)
lakhs) relates
The Income Tax High Court,
2 3 -
Act, 1961 Income Tax 6 13 2010-11 Hyderabad
The Income Tax Income Tax Appellate
Act, 1961 Income Tax 88.15 15 2011-12 Tribunal
The Income Tax High Court,
I T 274.1 - 12-
Act, 1961 ko e 2012 by derabad
The Income Tax Income Tax Appellate
Act, 1961 Income Tax 270.76 - 2013-14 Tribunal
The Income Tax -
Act, 1961 Income Tax 435.63 - 2016-17 CIT (Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales-tax, service tax, customs
duty, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank as at
balance sheet date. The Company has neither taken any loan from financial institutions or Government
nor has any dues to debenture holders.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, monies
raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which they were raised.

Further, based on the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments.

x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by the officers and employees
of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(x1) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid/ provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xii))  According to the information and explanations given by the mana ement, transactions with the related
P g Y g
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
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details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, hence not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

N”u)r-ﬂif —

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 96766
UDIN: 20096766 AAAAAXA664
Place of Signature: Faridabad
Date: June 05, 2020
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gateway East India Private Limited
(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these financial
statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company a
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being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

"2

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 96766
UDIN: 20096766 AAAAAX4664
Place of Signature: Faridabad
Date: June 05, 2020




GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U51909AP1994PTC017523
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant And Equipment 3 1,902.25 1,914.79
Other Intangible Assets 4 . 5.16
Right-Of-Use Assets 27(b) 1,739.11 2
Financial Assets
i. Other Financial Assets 5(d) 41.44 44.37
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 2,007.59 1,979.65
Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 220.90 216.80
Other Non-Current Assets 6 118.53 121.99
otal Non-Currant Assets 6,029.82 4,282,.76
Current assets
Contract Assets 5(a) 51.30 30.63
Financial Assets
i. Trade Receivables 5(a) 1,062.67 1,274.18
ii. Cash And Cash Equivalents 5(b) 0.57 0.40
iii. Bank Balances Other Than (ii) Above 5(c) 3.69 3.46
iv. Other Financial Assets 5(d) 0.22 0.22
Other Current Assets 6 50.34 3.74
ITotal Current Assets 1,168.79 1,31 3...‘:’.1.
TOTAL ASSETS — 7,198.61 5,595,39
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital %) 800.00 800.00
Other Equity
Reserves And Surplus 9(b) 3,422.73 3,476.18
Total Equity 4,222.73 4,276.18
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 10(a) 159.21 109.25
ii. Lease Liability 27(b) 1,799.93 -
|Employee Benefit Obligations 11 26.23 18.47
E‘t_a_l Non-Current Liabilities 1,985.37 127.72
Current Liabilities
Contract Liabilities 10(b) 5.75 9.21
Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 10(c) 692.13 863.37
ii.Lease Liability 27(b) 40.39 =
iii.Trade Payables 10(d)
- Total Outstanding dues Of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises -
- Total Outsta.nchng dues Of Creditors Other Than Micro Enterprises and 100.08 149.09
Small Enterprises
iv. Other Financial Liabilities 10(e) 121.33 103.33
Employee Benefit Obligations 11 15.05 21.30
Other Current Liabilities 12 15.78 45.19
Total Current Liabilities 990.51 1,191.49
[Total Liabilities 2,975.88 1,319.21
ﬁ‘—ntal Equities And Liabilities 7,198.61 5,595.39
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
In terms of our report of even date.
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gateway East India Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
?JJ)’*UW i %ﬁw trhars LS
W 288 {::}\ |t —=
per Vishal Sharma ; A )‘:‘\ Prem Kishan Dass Gupta Ishaan Gupta
Partner bt p I Chairman Director
Membership No.: 96766 [\ ‘-‘3L|.L . DIN: 00011670 DIN: 5298583
Place: Faridabad Wi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
RS
Date: 5th June 2020 » ‘ﬂ._.afj Date: 5th June 2020 Date: 5th June 2020

A
‘l l‘ pb’
Anuj Kalia
Company Secretary

Place: Jalandhar
Date: 5th June 2020

.



GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN-U51909AP1994PTC017523
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
H 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ncome
Revenue from Contracts with Customers 13 3,316.91 3,796.42
Other Income 14 9.31 8.38
Iotal Income 3,326.22 3,804.80
Expense
Operating Fxpenses 15 1,672.41 2,104.31
Employee Benefits Expenses 16 100.64 99.01
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 17 330.93 203.48
Other Expenses 18 678.24 781.33
Finance Costs 19 253.60 99.09
Total expenses 3,035.82 3,287.22
Profit before exceptional items and tax 290.40 517.58
Exceptional items = <
Profit before tax 290.40 517.58
Income tax expense 20
-Current tax 70.62 110.83
-Deferred tax (27.94) 368.05
Total tax expense 42.68 478.88
Profit for the year 247.72 38.70
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (net of tax) 11 (2.20) (3.96)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (2.20) (3.96)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 245.52 34.74
Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per share (INR) 29 3.10 0.48
Diluted earnings per share (INR) 29 3.10 0.48
The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
In terms of our report of even date.
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gateway East India Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E}00005
i "1 : -
i MM-L . ?)‘\9,0—* {oor L= \ L‘ w‘r)lﬂ
— % \aaun
[\J B \%0;;\;”(,“__\ 4 /
per Vishal Sharma {:?" N _:g Prem Kishan Dass Gupta Ishaan Gupta
Partner sy ﬁr' e Chairman Director
; DIN: 00011670 DIN: 5298583

. P
Membership No.: 96766 ":'L\Lﬁﬁ\_
Place: Faridabad
Date: 5th June 2020

thn

P RN L

Place: New Delhi
Date: 5th June 2020

Anuj Kalia
Company Secretary

Place: Jalandhar
Date: 5th June 2020

Place: New Delhi
Date: 5th June 2020



GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U51909AP1994PTC017523

Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended 31 March 2020
(ALl amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A Cash Flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax 290.40 517.58
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and Right-of-Use Assets 17 325.77 191.75
Amortisation of intangible assets 17 5.16 11.73
Increase/ (Decrease) in provision for doubtful debts 18 132.66 20.81
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 18 7.64 -
Write back of provision for doubtful ground rent no longer required (net) 14 - (0.96)
Interest income 14 0.24 (0.56)
Finance costs 19 253.60 98.93
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 5(a) (85.01) (5.71 }!
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets and contract assets 5(d),5(a) (17.74) (5.84)
(Increase)/decrease in lease liability 27(b) 101.21 -
(Increase)/decrease in other assets [ (43.14) 48.94
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 10(d) (49.01) 51.38
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities and contract liabilities 12,10(b) 32.87 1.92
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefit obligation 11 (3.71) (6.72 }1
Cash generated from operations 950.94 923.25
Income taxes paid 8 (74.72) (202.03)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 876.22 721.22
B Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangibles 3 (221.60) (158.21)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 3 26.00 24.92
Fixed Deposit Matured/(Deposited) 5(c) (0.23) (0.21)]
Interest received 14 0.26 0.35
Net cash outflow from investing activities (195.57) (133.15)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long term borrowings 10(a) (127.11) [89.05]1
Proceeds from borrowings 10(a) 199.72 -
Dividend Paid 9(b) (248.00) (800.00)
Dividend Distribution Tax 9(b) (50.97) (164.44)
Payment of principal portion of Lease liability 27(b) (197.19) -
Interest paid 19 (85.69) (97.65
Net cash oULilow Trom NNancing activities {509.24) (1,151.14)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 171.41 (563.07)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 5(b) (862.97) (299.90)
ash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (691.56) (352,97)1

-



GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U51909AP1994PTC017523
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flow

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Notes As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balances with banks
- on current accounts 5(b) 0.16 0.16
Cash on hand 5(b) 0.41 0.24
0.57 0.40

Bank overdraft 10(b) (692.13) (863.37)

(691.56) (862.97)]
Th= above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gateway East India Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005

j Xa

i aif o\ \ﬁ\\»"ﬂ
per Vishal Sharma '.fmg‘i PN/ Prem Kishan Dass Gupta Ishaan Gupta
Partner # E‘"""_é‘ ,/ Chairman Director
Membership No.: 96766 UR'S DIN: 00011670 DIN: 5298583
Place: Faridabad Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: 5th June 2020 Date: 5th June 2020 Date: 5th June 2020

Anuj Kalia

Company Secretary

Place: Jalandhar
Date: 5th June 2020
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Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 March 2020

(AU amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of changes in equity

(A) Equity share capital

No. of Shares Amount}
As at 1 April 2018 80.00 800.00
[Changes in equity share capital - -
As at 31 March 2019 80.00 800.00
Changes in equity share capital = -
As at 31 March 2020 80.00 800.00
(8) Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
o i Total Other Equi
Securities premium Retained earnings quity
reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2018 400.00 4,005.88 4,405.88
Profit for the year 38.70 38.70
Other Comprehensive income (3.96) (3.96)
Total comprehensive income for the year 400.00 4,040.62 4,440.62
Cash Dividend 800.00 800.00
lDividend Distribution tax 1_?4.44 164.44
Balance as at 31 March 2019 400.00 3,076.18 3,476.18
Balance as at 1 April 2019 400.00 3,076.18 3,476.18
Profit for the period 247.72 247.72
Other Comprehensive Income (2.20) (2.20)4
Total comprehensive income for the year 400.00 3,321.70 3,721.70
Cash Dividend . 248.00 248.00
Dividend Distribution tax - 50.97 50.97
Balance as at 31 March 2020 400.00 3,022.73 3,422.73
The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gateway East india Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
f \b} — R\Q %“@W ((,L ’ w A Y M{\“.\
N L5 ¢ e -
per Vishal Sharma Prem Kishan Dass Gupta Ishaan Gupta
Partner Chairman Director
Membership No.: 96766 DIN: 00011670 DIN: 5298583

Place: Faridabad
Date: 5th June 2020

Place: New Delhi
Date: 5th June 2020

Y

Anuj Kalia
Company Secretary
Place: Jalandhar
Date: 5th June 2020

Place: New Delhi
Date: 5th June 2020
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(a]

®)

©

(d)

Background

Gateway East India Private Limited (the 'C ) is d in the busi of providing services of C i Freight Station ('CFS'). The CFS is located on the
Exim Park, Sheela Nagar, Visakhapatnam. The CFS is about 16 Kms from Visakha Container Terminal Port. CFS provides common user facilities offering services
forContainer Handling, Transport and Storage of import/ export laden and empty containers and cargo carried under customs control.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 05 June 2020.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation:

@) Compliance With Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 (as amended from time to time).

(1) Historical Cost Convention

The financial have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following.
-- Certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value;

-~ Define benefit plan-plan assets measured at fair value; and

-~ Assets held for sale-measured at lower of carrying value and fair value [ess cost to sell.

(i) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

a. Expected to be realised or i ded to be sold or d in normal operating cycle

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

c. bxpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other iabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for ing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Segment Reporting:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company. The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating re and ing per of the op i has been identified as the Chairman and Managing

Director of the Company. The Company has identified one reportable segment “Container Freight Station™ i.e. based on the information reviewed by CODM. Refer
note 24 for information pi

Forelgn currency translation:

@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional
currency). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

(1) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains

and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are generally recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance cost. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

Non-monetary assets and lfabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of
transaction.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when thefair value was determined.
Translation difference on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain orloss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value throughprofit or loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetaryassets such as equity investments classified as FVOCl are ised in other p ive income.

All monetary assets and Habilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period. With respect to long-term foreign currency monetary items,
the Company has adopted the following policy:

Long Term foreign currency monetary item taken upto 31 March 2016 on depreciable assets:

« Foreign exchange difference on account of long term foreign currency loan on a depreciable asset, are adjusted in the cost of the depreciable asset, which
would be depreciated over the balance life of the asset.

Long Term foreign currency monetary item taken after 01 April 2016 on depreciable assets:

= Foreign exchange difference on account of a depreciable assets, are included in the Statement of profit and Loss.

A monetary asset or liability is termed as a long-term foreign currency monetary item, if the asset or liability is expressed in a foreign currency and has a term of
12 months or more at the date of origination of the asset or liability.

Revenue Recognltion.
The Company is principally engaged in a single segment viz. Inter-Modal Container Logistics, based on the nature of services, risks, retumns and the internal
business reporting system.

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” provides a control-based revenue recognition model and provides a five step application approach to be
followed for revenue recognition.

- Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Identify the performance abligations

- Determine the transaction price

= Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
= Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation
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Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements, except for the agency services, because it typically controls the services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Rendering of services :

(i) ‘Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of retums, trade allowances, rebates,
value added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

(i) The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefit will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Company activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

{iii) Income from Container handiing, storage and transportation are recognised on proportionate completion of the movement and delivery of goods to the
party/ designated place,

{iv) Income from Ground Rent is recognised for the period the container is lying in the Container Freight Station. However, in case of long standing containers, the
income from Ground Rent is not accrued for a period beyond 60 days as on the basis of past history the collectability is not reasonably assured.

(v) Income from auction sales is recognised when the Company auctions long-standing cargo that has not been cleared by R and for
Auction sales are recognised when auction is completed after obtaining necessary approvals from appropriate authorities. Auction sales include recovery of the
cost incurred in conducting auctions, accrued ground rent and handling charges relating to long-standing cargo. Surplus, out of auctions, if any, after meeting all
expenses and the actual ground rent, is credited to a separate account 'Auction Surplus’ and is shown under the head ‘Other Current Liabilities'. Unclaimed Auction
Surplus, if any, in excess of period specified under the Limitations Act is written back as‘Income’ in the following financial year.

Varfable conslderation
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the

service to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable i jon is sub: 1 The
Company r i h in the i d amount of variable consideration in the period in which the change occurs. Some contracts for the sale of service
provide customers with volume rebates and pricing incentives, which give rise to variable consideration.

The Company provides retrospective wlume rebates and pricing incentives to certain customers once the quantity of products purchased during the period
exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for
contracts with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of
volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a
refund liability for the expected future rebates.

Contract balances

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the

consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from services b the receipt of i ion is ditional on sful jon of the service.
Upon completion of the services and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impaimment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets and contract assets in section I(iii).

Contract liabilitles
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the Jfa pays id jon before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is

made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

Cost to obtaln a contract

The Company pays sales commission ta its selling agents for each contract that they obtain for the Company. The Company has elected to apply the optional
practical expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the Company to immediately expense sales commissions (included in advertisement and sales
promotion under other ) b the amortization period of the asset that the Company otherwise would have used is one year or less.

Costs to fulfil a contract i.e. freight, insurance and other selling are r ized as an in the period in which related revenue is recognised.

Critical judgements

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer service to the customers. Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the
contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of consids ion or variable i ion with such as schemes, incentives,
cash di: , etc. The i d amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highty probable that a

significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

Estimates of rebates and discounts are sensitive to changes in ci es and the G ’s past experience regarding retumns and rebate entitlements may
not be representative of customers’ actual retums and rebate entitlements in the future.

Costs to obtain a contract are generally expensed asincurred. The assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when considering
if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.

Other revenue streams

Export Benefits
Export Entitlements in the form of Service Exports from India Scheme (SE!IS) and other schemes are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the right to

receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate
collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Dividend
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

interest Income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial kiability. When cakulating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement
of profit and loss.
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(¢) Income Tax:

@

(h)

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and iiabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws dor ively d at the end of the reporting period where the Company
generate taxable income. periodically e position taken in tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for ait deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, branches and
associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legatly enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, of to reatise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items re ised in other comp ive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the taxis also ised in other comp! ive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Leases:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and buitding. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

1) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any d depreciation and i i losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease habilities. The cost of right-of-Use
assets inctudes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initiat direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease temm or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (i) Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed pay i ing in fixed pay ) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option certain to be jsed by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising
the option to temminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred to produce
jnventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate

implicit in the lease is not readily dete rmi After the date, the amount of lease Liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease pay {e.g., changes to future p; resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in

the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

fil)Short-tesrm leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term teases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be tow value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

"Lease liability” and "Right of Use” asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating teases. Rental
income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are eamed.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value i use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company’s of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Impairment losses including impairment on inventories
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life.

Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-tem
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdraft. Bank overdraft are shown within borrowing in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

-
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(i) Trade Recelvables

[})

(k!

[(

(m)

Trade Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impaiment.

Investments and other financial assets

@) Classification

The Company classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories:

.- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through statement of profit and loss and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s busi model for ing the jal assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For the assets measured at fair value, gain and losses will either be recorded in statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investment in
debt instrument, this will depends on the business model in which the investment is held.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

{ii) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial assets at its fair value plus, in the case of a financiat assets not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the isition to the ial assets. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Debt Instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and cash flow characteristics of the asset. There

are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments.

1. Amortised Cost: Assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt i that is & { d at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is
reconised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.

2. Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI): Assets that are hetd for the collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assats cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl
is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest Income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.

3. Fair Value ﬂ':rdugh profit or loss (FVPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured as fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt i that is ly measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss
and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which it arises. Dividend income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Q1) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impaimment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade receivables and other
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial assets.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected tifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

(iv) Derecognition of financlal assets

A financial assets is derecognised only when
-- The Company has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the financiat assets or
.- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.
In such cases, the financial asset s derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(v) Income recognition

{i) Interest: Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate.
{ii) Dividend: Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Financlal Liabllitles

(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

.. those to be measured subsequently at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, and
*- those measured at amortised cost

(1) Measurement
1. Financial liabilities at amortised cost- Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are initially r ized at fair

value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost.

2. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting financlal instruments

Financial assets and tiabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the assets and settle the liability simul ly. The legally le right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the

counterparty.

Property, Plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future ecoromic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
assets is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

-

-



GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMTED
CH-U51909AP1994PTC017523
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 March 2020

[

(0!

()

(q

{s]

D datl hods, est) d useful lives and residual value

P

Depreciation on additions/ deletions to Tangible and Intangible Assets is calculated on pro-rata basis from the month of such additions/ deletions. The Company
provides depreciation on straight-line method at the rates specified under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, except for:

- Reach Stackers and forklifts (inciuded in Other Equi 's) are depreciated over a period of ten years, based on the technical evaluation;

. Additions/ construction of Building and Leasehold Improvements is being amortised over the balance period of the lease period;
- Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition/ construction.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in statement of profit and loss.

ntangible Assets

ible assets d are d at cost or fair vatue as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any. Intangible assets of the Company consist of computer software and is amortised under straight line method over a period of three years.

Trade and other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting pericd. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest methed.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction cost) and ion amount is r ised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

rate method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obtigation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financiat liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities d, is ised in of prafit and loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the
liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the kability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and
before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing Cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assets are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Provislons:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is r ised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provision are measured at the present value of t's best estil of the di required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risk specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee Benefits:

@) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including nol Y that are exp d to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are recognised in Statement of profit and loss in respect of employees service up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
balance sheet.

(i) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The HKabilities for earned teave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the repotting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.

(@ti) Post employment obligations

The Company operates the ing post-emp
1.) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
2.) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligati inated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflow by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets. This cost is included
in employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss .

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in statement of profit
and loss as past service cost.
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Defined Contribution Plans

The Company pays provident fund contribution to publicly administesed provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.

(@iv) Bonus Plan

The Company recognise the liability and an expenses for bonus. The Company recognise a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

Earnings per Share:

{1} Basic earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:

1) The profit attributable to the owner of the Company
2) by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the fii jal year, adj d for bonus el ts in equity shares.

(1) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted eamings per share adjusts the figure used in the ination of basis ings per share to take into account:

1) the after income tax effect of interest and other fi ing costs i with dilutive p ial equity shares, and
2) the weighted average number of additionat equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Contributed Equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of

the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The ing for in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so,

the nature of the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Embedded foreign currency derivatives
Embedded foreign currency derivatives are not separated from the host contract if they are closely related. Such embedded derivatives are closely related to the

host contract, if the host contract is not leveraged, does not contain any option feature and requires payments in one of the following currencies:

- the functional currency of any ial party to that
-the currency in which the price of the related good or service that is acquired or deli d is i inated in ial transactions around the world,
-a currency that is commonly used in contracts to purchase or sell non-financial items in the economic environment in which the transaction takes place fi.e.

relatively liquid and stable currency)

Business combinations
The isition method of ing is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The

consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the :

1) fair values of the assets transferred;

2) liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

3) equity interests issued by the Company; and

4) fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities dina i bination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Company recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

1) consideration transferred;

2) amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

3) acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is ised in other ive income and ed in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the

underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as
capital reserve.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the busi ination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such ement are r ised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is cnsidered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their camying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from
this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assetsin the balance sheet.

Exceptional ltems
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the

performance of the Company for the year, the nature and amount of such items is disclosed separately as Exceptional items.
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Government Grants

Govemnment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life in a pattem of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Contingent Liabilitles

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of cne or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settte the obligation. A contingent Hability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it
cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Rounding of amounts
Al i in the jal st and notes have been round off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise

stated.

Changes in accounting policles and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Company applied ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard is
described below.

The Company has not early adopted any standards, amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective/notified.

Ind AS 116 Leases
Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases i ing its di { dix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind

AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluatlng the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a lease). The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leaseson the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principtes as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application on 1 April 2019, The Company elected
to use the t it dient to not whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at 1 April 2019. Instead, the Company applied the standard only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Company also elected
to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase
option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Refer note 27 for detailed impact on adoption of Ind AS 116 “Leases” on the financial statements of the Company.

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company applied a single ition and h for all leases for which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognised lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

In accordance with the modified retrospective method of adoption, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate as on the date of transition and has measured right of use asset (adjusted by the accrued lease payments) an
amount equal to lease liability.

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. it does
not apply to taxes or levies cutside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The Appendix specifically addresses the following:

sWhether an entity iders uncertain tax ti separately

«The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities

+How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates

«How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the
approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. In determining the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, the Company
has considered, for example, (a) how it prepares its income tax filings and supports tax treatments; or (b) how the entity expects the taxation authority to make
its examination and resolve issues that might arise from that examination.

The Company determined, based on its tax compliance, that it is probable that its tax treatments will be accepted by the taxation authorities.

The Appendix did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 109: Pr F with Nega C
Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash
flows are *solely payments of principat and interest on the principal amount outstanding’ {the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate
business model for that classification. The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of an event or circumstance
that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early termination of the
contract. These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan A d Cur or

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments
specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to determine the current service
cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial i used to e the net defined
benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event. An entity is also required to determine the net interest
for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement using the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered
under the plan and the plan assets after that event, and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability {asset).

The amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it did not have any plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements during the
period.

Amendments to Ind AS 28: Long-term Interests {n assoclates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied but
that, in substance, form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant because it implies that the
expected credit loss model in Ind AS 109 applies to such long-term interests.

The amendments also clarified that in applying Ind AS 109, an entity does not take account of any losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment
losses on the net investment, re as adj to the net il in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying Ind AS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements as the Company does not have long-term interests in its associate and joint venture.

] .
: Ly
: \ ‘-/
G{;R‘JG‘* 2



GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CN-U51909AP1994PTC017523
Statement of changes In equity for the period ended 31 March 2020

Annual Improvements to Ind AS 2018

Ind AS 103 Business Combinations
The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it applies the requirements for a business combination

achieved in stages, including remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the acquirer
remeasures its entire previously held interest in the joint operation.

An entity applies those amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as there is no transaction where joint control is obtained.

Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

An entity that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the
joint operation constitutes a business as defined in Ind AS 103. The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in that joint operation are not
remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint controt on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or
after 1 April 2019.

These amendments had ne impact on the financial statements of the Company as there is no transaction where a joint control is obtained.

+Ind AS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or events that generated distributabte profits
than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income orF equity
according to where it originally recognised those past transactions or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

Since the Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

+ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of
the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those
amendments. An entity applies those amendments for annuat reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

Since the Company’s current practice is in line with these amendments, they had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

2 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS:

The pr ion of financial ts require the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs
to ise jud in applying the G H ing poticies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions tuming out to be different that those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas l critical esti; or jud are:

- of P & G Uiabilities

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recogmsmg provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities which is related to pending titigation or
other ing claims. Jud, is yin the likeli that a pending ctaim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible

range of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual liability may be different from the originally estimated as
provision. (Refer Note 26)

- Estimated useful life of tangible and Intangible assets

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the
end of its life. The useful lives and residual vatues of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodi tly,
including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact

their life, such aschanges in technology. For the relative size of the Company’s intangible assets. (Refer Note 3 & 4)

- Estimation of defined benefit obiigation
The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The
used in ining the net cost (income) for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the

carrying amount of such obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year, This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of
estimated future cash outfiows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company
considers the interest rates of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the related plan liability. Refer note 11 for the details of the assumptions
used in estimating the defined benefit obligation. (Refer Note 11)

— Impairment of trade recelvables
Trade receivables are i d and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has been managed by the Company through credit

approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course
of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit toss model to assess the impairment foss or gain. The Company uses a
provision matrix and forward-looking i and an t of the credit risk over the expected life of the financial asset to compute the expected credit
toss allowance for trade receivables. {Refer Note 22}

-- Estimated fair value of financlal instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation i The M it uses its jud to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key
assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions refer Note 21.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may
have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be ri ble under the ci

-
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GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Other Intangible assets

Notes:

Computer Software
[Refer Note beiow] b
Cost
As at 1 April 2018 37.16 37.16
Additions = :
As at 31 March 201% 37.16 37.16
tions - -
As-at 31 March 2020 37.16 37.16
Amortisation and impairment
As at 1 April 2018 20.27 20.27
Amortisation charge for the year 11.73 11.73
As at 31 March 2019 32.00 32.00
Amortisation charge for the year 5.16 5.16
As at 31 March 2020 37.16 37.16
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2020 - -
| Net carrying amount as at 31 March 201% 5.16 5.16

Computer software consists of cost of ERP licenses. Useful life of Computer software is estimated to be 3 years, based on technical obsolescence of such assets.

The space below has been left blank intentionally




GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of financial statements for the perlod ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Financial assets

Note 5(a) Trade receivables and Contract Assets

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Current Portion
Non-current Portfon

Trade receivables 1,247.03 1,332.04

Less: Impainment for trade receivable* 184.36 57.86

Total receivables 1,062.67 1,274.18
1,062.67 1,274.16 |

Break-up of securities details

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

I§acured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good 1,062.67 1,274.18
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 184.36 57.86
Total 1,247.03 1,332.04
Less: Impairment for trade receivable* 184.36 57.86
Total trade receivablas 1,062.67 1‘_2?4. 18

(a) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other

receivable are due from firms or Private Companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
(b) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
(c) Refer Note 30 for details relating to receivables pledged.

* The provision for the impairment of trade receivable has ben made basis the expected credit loss method and other cases based on management judgement.

Contract Assets

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Accrued Ground Rent Net
-Considered Good 51.30 30.63)
-Considered doubtful 6.16 0.99

57.46 31.62

Less: Provision for Doubtful Ground Rent 6.16 0.99
Accrued Ground Rent (net 51.30 30.63

Contract Assets relate to ongoing services for which the Company has entered into agreement with customer wherein the Company has identiffed its performance
obligations in contract as per Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contract with customers”. The Company’s right to receive consideration is conditional upon satisfaction of these
performance obligation. Contract Assets are in the nature of unbilled receivables which arises when Company satisfies performance obligation but does not have

unconditional rights to consideration.

5(b) Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

I-Balances with banks
- on current accounts
Cash on hand

lﬂﬂ[ Cﬂ!ﬂ il‘la cisﬁ equ‘w|ems

0.16 0.16
0.41 0.24
0.57 0.40

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

}_ 31 March 2020 31 March 2019]
Balances with banks
- on current accounts 0.16 0.16
(Cash on hand 0.41 0.24
0.57 0.40
Bank overdraft (692.13) (863.37)
(691.56) (862.97)

5(c) Bank balances other than 5 (b) above

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months

3.69

3.46

Total bank balances other than 5 (b) above

3.69

3.46

Note 5(d) Other financial assets

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Current Non-Current Current Non-current
Security and other deposits - 41.44 - 44.37
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 0.22 % 0.22 -
[Total other financial assets 0.22 41.44 0.22 44.37
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Note 6: Other Current assets

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Balance with Government authorities
Income tax paid under protest - 28.00 ] 28.00
GST receivable 42.19 - 1.58 .
[Advance to suppliers 0.13 - - -
Prepaid expenses 8.02 90.53 2.16 93.99
Total other current assets 50.34 118.53 3.74 121.99
Note 7: Deferred tax assets (net)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

31 March 2020 31 m
Minimum Alternate Credit Entitlement 2,054.11 2,054.11
On Lease liability 511.97 -
[Total Deferred Tax Assets: _2,566.08 2,054.11
Deferred Tax Liability:
Temporary difference between book and tax depreciation (74.67) (74.46)
On Right-Of-Use Assets (483.82) =
Total Deferred Tax LiabiiGes: (558.43) (74.46)]

2,007.59 1,979.65

|Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Note

(i) The Company is claiming deduction under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ® 100% on the profits for business and profession from Container Freight Station
and is under tax holiday period till financial year 2019-2020. The Company has recognised MAT credit aggregating to Rs. 2,054 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 which represents
that portion of the MAT Liability, the credit of which would be available based on the provision of Section 115JAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The management based on
the future projections, business plans and all viable options is confident that there would be sufficient taxable profits in the future to utilise the MAT credit within the
stipulated period from the date of origination.

Movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities (net)

Particulars Total
sAtApril1 2018 2,347.70
(Charged)/credited
-to profit or loss (368.05)
As at March 31 2019 1,979.65
(Charged) /credited -
-to prefit or loss 27.94
As at March 31 2020 ymtﬁ

Note 8: Current Tax Assets (net)

Total

IParticulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(a) Income tax expense
Opening Balance 216.80 125.60
Current Tax Payable for the year {70.62) (110.83)
Taxes Paid 74.72 202.03
220.90 216.80

et The space below has been left blank intentionally
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Note 9: Equity share capital and other equity

9(a) Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital
Number of shares Amount
As at 31 March 2019 - Equity share of INR 10 per share 100.00 1,000.00
As at 31 March 2020 - Equity share of INR 10 per share 100.00 1,000.00
Issued Subscribed and Paid Up Share Capital
Number of shares Amount
|Asat 31 March 2020 - Equity share of INR 10 per share 80.00 800.00
(i) Movements in equity share capital
Number of shares Equfty. sy
— caEItaI
As at 1 April 2018 80.00 800.00
Change during the year - -
As at 31 March 2019 80.00 800,00
Change during the year - =
As at 31 March 2020 80.00 800.00

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the
event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in
proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Shares of the company held by holding/ultimate holding company

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Gatzwaz Distriparks Limited(immediate and Lﬁmate holding company) 80.00 80.00
(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Number of % holding Number of % holding
shares — shares

Gateway Distriparks Limited 80.00 100% 80.0 100%
9(b) Reserve and surplus

3TMarch 2020 37 March 2019
Securities premium reserve 400.00 400.00
Retained eamings 3,022.73 3,076.18
Total reserves and surplus 3,422.73 3,476.18
(i) Securities premium reserve

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance 400.00 400.00

Proceeds received =
[Ciosing Balance 400.00 400.00 |

(ii) Retained earnings

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Opening balance 3,076.18 4,005.88

|Profit for the year 247.72 38.70

ftems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings: 3

-Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation (2.20) (3.96)
Dividend paid (248.00) {800.00)
|Dividend distribution Tax (50.97) (164.44))

[Closing Balance 3,022.73 3,076.18

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provision for the Act.

In the current year, there are no utilisation from the security premium reserve.

Dividends
An interim dividend of INR 3 per equity share on the face value of INR 10/- each amounting to INR 240 lakhs (Dividend distribution tax thereon of INR

49.33 lakhs) has been declared by the Board of Directors in its meeting dated 12th March 2020.

-
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Note 10: Financial liabilities

10(a) Non-current borrowings

L 31 March 2020____ 31 March 2019
Secured

From Banks

Vehicle Finance Loan from HDFC Bank (refer note 10(c){1)) 280.54 206.85
Total non-current barrowings 280.54 206.85
Less: Current maturitles of long term debt(included in note 10(e})) 120.25 96.75
Less: Interest accrued (included in note 10(e)) 1.08 0.85
Non-Current borrowings 159.21 109.25

10 (b} Contract Liabilities

31 &arch 2020 31 March 2019
Advances received from customers 5.75 9.21
5.75 9.21

The Company has entered into agreements with customers far rendering of specified services. The Company has identified these performance obligations and recognised
the same as contract liabilities in respect of contracts where the Company has obligation to render specified services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration. Contract Liabilities also include surplus realisations from auction proceedings.

10 {c) Current borrowings

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Secured
Bank overdraft 692.13 863.37
Total current borrowings 692.13 863,37
Current barrowings 692.13 863.37

Nature of Security:

(i) Vehicle Finance Loans from HDFC Bank of INR 280.54 lakhs (31 March 2019 INR 206.85 lakhs) are secured by way of hypothecation on the Company’s Commercial
Vehicles purchased through the loan amount. Repayable in 48/59 equal monthly instalments along with interest ranging from 9.24% per annum to 10.25% per annum on
reducing monthly balance,

ii) Cash Credit from HDFC Bank amounting to INR 692.13 lakhs (31 March 2019 INR 863.37 lakhs) is secured by first exclusive charge on stock in trade, book debts and
receivables, plant & machinery consisting of reach stackers, movable assets of the company and Corporate Guarantee of Gateway Distriparks Limited, the Holding

Company.

10(d) Trade payables

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
-Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprise (refer note 28) = -
-Other Payables 100.08 149.09
Total trade payables 100.08 149.09
10(e) Other financial liabilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current maturities of Long-Term Borrowings 120.25 96.75
Payables for capital assets - 5.73
Interest accrued but not due 1.08 0.85
Total other current financial liabilities 121.33 103.33
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Note 11: Employee benefit obligations

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current Hon-current Current — Hon-current -
Caawe obligation ] 3.5 — 760 — .55
1.14 2248 5.59 12.82
Total benafit obligations 6,79 26.23 B.19 16.47
Director Commimion Payable 8.26 - 10.32 -
mployes Banefit Payable - - 1.79 -
otal employee benafit bligations 15.05 6.3 21,30 18,47 |

(1) Leave obligation
The leave obligation cover the company liability for sick and eamed leave.

{11) Post Employment obligations

(a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employee who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of
gratuity payable on retirement / termination fs the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The

Gratuity plan of the company is unfunded.

(b) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contributions to Provident Fund, which are defined contribution plan, for qualifyi ployees. Under the sch: the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage
of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised INR 5.70 lakhs (31 March 2019 INR 5.81 lakhs ) for these contribution in the statement of profit and loss. The contributions payable
to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The company also has certain defined contribution plans, Contribution are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are
made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the company i limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive
bligation. The expense r ised during the year towards defined contribution plan i INR 5.70 Lakhs (31 March 2019 INR 5.81 {akhs)

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the mevement in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Balance sheet amount (Gratuity)
{a) Movement of Present Value Obligation

Presant yalue of obligation Amount
1 April 2018 0,50
[Current servics cost 1.53
'Inwst;ﬂ:mﬂgmmuf 1.38
otal smount recognised in profit and loss 2.91
Remedsurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest exp i }
(Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions .
1.12
1.08
2.20]
23.41

Present value of obligation Amnunl!
12.57

1 April 2018

Current service cost 1.02
Intereit expense/(incomae) 0.95
otal amount in profit and loss 157
MegsUrements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest exp / )
(Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions -
(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions 0.12
3.24;_
5%

31 March 2020
23567

23.61

23.61

« The space below has been left blank i




GATEWAY EAST INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annaxed to and forming part of financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2020
(AW amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

[{[}} Actuarial and
The significant actuarial amumptions wers as fellows:

ITFarch 1020 31 Marc

6.80% T4TR
B.25% B.15%
5.00% 5.00%

Notes:
1) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Govenment securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

2) The salary escalation rate is the estimate of future satary increase considered taking into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

iv) Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions i:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in assumptions Increase in assumptions Decrease in assumptions
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 3t March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2119/
Boolnt rate LS 1% Incresse by LS B1% Increase by 8.15%
alary growth rate 1% 1% Increasa by 7.95% 7.49% Increase by 7.11% 6.63%
Attrition rate 1% 1% Incresse by -0.82% -0.51% Increase by 0.90% 0.55%

The above semsitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be
correlated, When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to signi actuarial ptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The hods and types of jons used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

(v) Risk Exposure
These plans typically expcse the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
(1) Investment risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability i calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds.
Plani is a mix of i in government securities, and other debt instruments.
(19) Interest risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the retum on the plan’s debt investments.
(Itt) Longevity risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan partici during their !
of the plan participants will increase the plan’s Liability.
{iv) Salary risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the s alary of the plan participants will increase
the plan’s liability.

An increase in the life expectancy

vi) Defined benefit Habllity and employers contributions
Expected contributions to pest employment benefits for the year ended 31 March 2020 is NIL ( 31 March 2019 -NIL ) for the unfunded plan.

vif) Defined benefit obli and . L
The weighted average duration of the projected benefit obligation is 10 years { 2019- 9 years, 2018- 8 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows =

15t Fellowing Year
2nd Following Year
3rd Following Year
Hth Following Year
5th Following Year
5um of Years 6 To 10

Note 12: Other liabilitles

31 March 2020__ 31 March 2019
o
15,78

The space below has been left blank i
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Note 1 From C With C
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Container Handling. Transport, Starage and Ground Rent income 3.31_6.9-1 3, 736.47
[Total Ravenue from Contracts with Customers 3,316.91 3,796.42
I.Geographical markets
5ale of Services - India 3,316.91 3,796.42
Sale of Services - Outside India = =
3,316.91 3.756.42
ervices Transferred at point in time - =
ervices Transferred over time 3,316.91 3.796.42
otal Revenue from Contracts with Custemens 331694 3,796.42 |
ll.Contract Balances
[Trade Receivables (Refer Note 5(a)) 1,062.67 1,274.18
[Contract Asset (Refer Note 5(a)) 51.30 30.63
{Contract Liabilities (Refer Note 10(b)) 5.75 9.21

W.Performance Obligation

[The performance obligation in respect of services provided being provided by the Company, are satisfied over a period of time and upon acceptance of the customer,
yment is g ily due upen delivery of services and acceptance of customer. Payments are generally due within 30 to 90 days.

Note 14: Other income

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest -
- From bank on fixed deposits 0.24 0.56
Liabilities/ Provisions no longer required written back . 0.96
isc ellanecus [ncome 2.07 G_E
|iulﬂulherlm 9.31 5.38 |
Note 15: Operating expenses
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Incentives and commission 43,61 36.00
Transportation 974.68 1,326.94
iLabour charges 356.30 413.98
(Sub Contract Charges 157.08 190.40
[Equipment hire charges 95.35 84,60
[Surveyer Charges 38.80 43.55
wction Enses _0.59 B.84
ofal atl nses 1,672.41 2,104.31
Hote 16: Employee benefit exponse
L 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
o
alaries, wages and Bonus B7.13 B5.76
Contribution to provident and other funds 5.70 5.21
Leave Compensation 4.32 5.42
JGratuity (Refer note 11) 2.9 197
Staff welfare expenses 0.58 0.65
olal E Beneflt sex 100,64 55.01
Note 17: Depreciation and amortisation expense
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Dapreciation on property, plant and squipment (ReTar note 3] 94,50 1,75 |
Amortization of intangible Assets (Refer note 4) 5.16 11.73
epreciation on Right-of Use-Assets {Refer note 27(b)) 130,57 -
otal depreciation and amortisation 310.93 203.48
Note 18: Other expenses
L 31 March 2020 31 March 2019]
Fower and faal 228.98 236,25
Rent 3.66 189.20
Rates and taxes 41.01 22.16
Repairs & Maintenance:
Building 31.23 53.78
Plant and machinery 69.63 §9.39
Others 1.12 0.23
lnsurance 8.42 5.43
Directors Sitting Fees 15.00 10.20
Frinting and Stationery 4.32 6.41
[Travelling expenses 19.88 21,11
[Communication expenses 6.63 7.1
[Security Charges 59.07 59.59
Audit Fees (Refer note 18(a) below) 4.48 4.56
Frofessional charges 10.44 11.85
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer note 18(b) below} 26.83 35.00
Frovisian for Doubtful debts and Doubtful Ground Rent 132.66 20.81
Miscellannous mpenses 7.24 8.15
|.oss on sale of Fixed Assets 7.84 ¥
e — e
m s28:24 Z81.33)
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18(a) Detalls of payments to auditors

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
P ayment to uldTl:_on
auditor:
Audit fee 2.00 2.00
Limited Review 2.25 2.25
in Other Capacities
Reimbursement of expenses 0.2% 0.31
otal 4.49 4.56
18(b} C socfal bility expendi
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Contribution o Prime Minister Relief Fund - 70.00 |
[# . to Bana Devel Found: 9.50 25,00
Contribution to Other Davals 1233 e
&,ﬂ! 35.00
Amount required to be spent as per saction 135 of the act 15.35 M8
maount spent during the year on
i} Construction / acquisition of an asset = -
i) on pu her than (i) abova 26.83 35.00
Note 19: Finance costs
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost 24.37 24.92
interest on Lease Liabilities 167.38 -
Cash credit 61.31 73.90
Interest on income tax 0.36 -
Others 0.18 0.27
Inanco cost expensed in pm:m account 153.60 99.09 |
Hote 20: Income tax expense
20{a) Income Tax Expense:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
income tax expense
Current tax
[Current tax on profits for the year 70.52 110.83
otal current Lax expenss 70.62 110.83
Llf.tu.l.d.m
incraase/{Decreace) in deferred tax asets 511.97 -
i )/Mecrease in defarrad tax Habilit (484.03) 34.26
JMAT Credit Entitlemant - (333.79)]
Fn;ﬂ deleirod tax expensei{benel 1) _ (27.94) 368.05
Jincome tax 42.68 A78.88 |
No deferred tax has beon ded for items d in other comprehanst

income during the years. Further, Mo aggregate amounts of current and deferred tax

have arisen in the reporting periods, which have not been recognised in net profit or loss or other comprehensive income but directly debited/ (credited) to equity.

20(b) Reconcillation of tax and the profit d by India's tax rate:
31 March 2020 31 March 201
rofit before tax 250.40

[Statutory income tax rate 27.820%
[Computed expected tax expenses 80.79
{0ifferences due to:

Tax effect on temporary diffi [ H{ d) during the tax holiday period 42.68

tncome that is axempt from Tax Under Section 801A (4) of Income Tax Act @n.n}
Income tax expanse 42.68

L4
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21

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
{a) Financial instrument by category.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Amortised Amortised
Financial Assets FVPL Fvoci cost FYPL Fvoci Cost
[Trade Receivable - - 1,062.67 - - 1,274.18
Cash and Cash equivalent - : 0.57 - - 0.40
Other Bank Balances - - 3.69 - - 3.46
Other Financial Assets - - 41.66 - - 44.59
Total Financlal Assets - - 1,108.59 - - 1,322.63
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings ( including current maturities ) - - 971.59 - - 1,069.37
Trade Payables - - 100.08 - - 149.09
Other Financial Liabilities - . 1.08 = * 6.58
Total Finandal Liabilities - - 972.67 - - 1,075.95
{l} Fair Value Hierarchy
Financial assets which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are
disclosed on 31 March 2020 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Security Depesit (refer note 22 ) 5(d) - - 41.44 41.44
Total Finandial Assets . = 41.44 41.
Financial Liabilities
Borrowlings | including current maturities ) 10(a) & 10(b) - 971.59 971.59
otal Financial Liabilities - - 971.59 971.59
Financlal assets which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are
disclosed 31 March 2019 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Security Deposit {refer note 22} 5(d} - - 44.37 44.37
otal Financial Assets - B 44,37 44.37
Financial Liabllities
Borrowings | including current maturities ) 10(a) & 10(b} - - 1,069.37 1,069.37
ties - . 1,069.37 1,069.37

Except for those financial assets/liabitities mentioned in the above table, the Company considers that the carrying amounts recognised in the financial statements
approximate their fair values. For financial assets that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equat to the fair values.

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes financtal instruments measured using quoted price. This includes tisted equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that

have quoted price.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation technique which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity -specific estimates. If all significant inputs

required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the signiffcant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

The fair values of investment in security deposit and non current borrowings were calculated based on cash flows discounted at current lending rate/ borrowing
rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

{i1) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes

The fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 3.

(i1i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilitles measured as amortised cost

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
:;r;yj:'né Fair value ::‘rorﬁ:‘ng Fair Value

Financial Assets
Security Deposit 41.44 41.44 44,37 44,37

nancial Assets 4144 a7.49 CEBY 44.37
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 971.59 971.59 1,069.37 1,069.37
[Total Finandial Liih__;l_llti&: 971.59 971.59 1,069.37 1,069.37

Significant Estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques, if any. The Company uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The G s fil jal risk is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is exposed to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

The Company's senior m the of these risks, The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework
for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee. This process prowvi to the Company’s ssnior that the Comp 5 financial risk taking
activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that the financial risks are fdantt d, d and ged in dance with the Campary policies and Company risk
objective. In the event of crisis caused due to extemnal factors such as by the recent pandemic “C0VID-19", the asseses the lity of its assets, maturity of its Uabllities to
factor it in cash flow forecast to ensure that there is enough liquidity in these situations through internal and extemnal source of funds.

Risk Exposure arfsing from Measurement Management
Cash and cash equivalent, trade Aging analysis Bank deposit, credit limits
e receivable, financial assets
Credit risk measured at amartised cost.
Borrowings and other liabilities Rol-ling cash flow forecast Avaﬂabiﬁty of committed
Liquidity risk borrowings facilities (Cash Credit)
o Long-term borrowings at, Sensitivity analysis Monitoring and shifting
Market risk -interest rate variable rates benchmark interest rates
(A) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under a fi jal inst or cust contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with bank and financial institution and other ial inst
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on trads {vables by lifetime d credit loss method based on provision matrix. Other Tactors of default are detsmmined by
ing the busi i in which the Company cperates and other macro-economic factors. The Company considers the probability of defaclt upan inftial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk an an ongoing basis throughout each reparting pariod. To assess whether there fs a significant increase in credit rigk the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reparting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial It consi and supportive forwarding-boking

information such as: adverse changes in business, changes in the operating results of the countarparty, change to the counterparty's ability to meet its abligations etz. Financial assets are wiitten
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Trade Recelvable and Contract Assets
Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from customers, Contract assets are unsecured receivables, It comprises of accrued income on containers lyingat the
warehouse/yard but have not been inwoiced.

Credit risk has been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuowsly monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit
terms in the pormal course of business. On account of adoption of ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impaiment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision
matrix and forward-looking information 2nd an assessment of the credit risk over the expected life of the fi ial asset to the exp d credit (oss all for trade receivables. There
are no significant cradit risk partaining to margin maney and utility deposits.

Of the Trade Receivables balance as at March 31, 2020, the top 5 customers of the Company represent the balance of Rs. 752.21 lakhs (31 March 2019- Rs. 833.57 fakhs). There are 5 customers who
represent more than 5% of total balance of Trade Receivables,

Total ] credit expo on trade receivable as at 31 March 2020 is Rs. 1,247.03 lakhs (31 March 2019 is Rs. 1,332.04 takhs).
Ageing 0-30 days 31-60 days past] 61-90 days 91-180 days past] Above 180 days Total
due past due due
s 221,97 TP 754,37 T84 | 191.5] :
rch i, —A15.69 SELAD TEE.51 0,58 T7E. 1.
(if) Reconciliation of loss all. P - Trade R ble and Contract Assets

Impairment Allowances on 1 April 2018
ad debt written off

Credit Risk on cash @ cash equivalents is limited as the company is generally deposit surplus fund with banks . The Company is not exposed to any other credit risks.

Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumption about risk of default and expected loss rates, The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(B) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. Also, the Company has unutilized credit limits with banks.

(1) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars 31 March 2020] 31 March 2019
ating Rate
within ans year{Bark overdraft and alﬁ:’r faciiitizs) 407.87 236.63
otal 407.87 736, _3-

The Bank Overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time within one year. The said facility is being extended at the sole discretion of the bank and terms & conditions as well as pricing would be
subject to periodic review, amendment or cancellation.
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(i) Maturitles of financial lfabilities

The tables below anaiyse the Company's financial liabilities

the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
liability is as follows:

r the period ended 31 March 2020

into relevant maturity grouping based on their contractual maturities for all non- derivative financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in
Balance due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. Contractual maturities of financial

Contractual maturitles of financlal liabilities Repayable on | Less than 3 3months o 6 | &months to 1 More than 1 Year Total
demand month months years
692,13 3710 33.46 50.78 158.13 971.60
Lease liabilities {undiscounted value) - . B 205.10 3,686.95 3,892.05
rade payables 96.65 1.32 0.27 - 98.24
ther Financial Liabifitiss . 1.08 . - . 1.08
692.13 34.78 256,15 3,045.08 | 4,962.97
Contractual maturities of financial labilities | RePavableon | Lessthan3 | 3 months to6 | 6 months to 1 More than 1 Year Total
gemand month months years
863,37 23,52 24.10 49.98 108.40 1,069.37
ase liabilities (undiscounted value) - - - - - .
rade payables 92.52 63.72 0.27 2.91 159.42
7 Financial Liabilities . 6.58 - - - 6.58
_Tz.ﬁ'_'ﬂ_‘i 62| 682 50,25 TI1.31] 1,235,

(C ) Market Risk
Market risks comprises of price risk and interest rate ris|
Company does not have any financial instrument which is exposed to change i

(a) Interest Rate risk exposure

k. The Company does not designate any fixed rate financial assets as fair value throu

n price.

gh profit and loss nor at fair value through OCI. Therefore

The exp of the s b ings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows,
articulars 31 March 20. 1 March 2019)
i te Barrowings 13 863.37
Fixed Rate Borrowings 279.46 206.00
971.59 1 &

(b) Sensivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher /lower interest expense from borrowings as a re:

sult of changes in interest rates.

articulars

Interest Rate - Increase by 1 basis point*
Interest Rate - Decrease by 1 basis point*

* Holding all other variable constant

23 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The company considers the followi

Total equity as shown in the balance sheat inciud
The company aim to manages its capital efficien
based! on management's judgament af the appro
manage the capital structure in light of changes
adjust the amount of dividends pafd to sharehold
The company’s policy is to maintain a stable and
&nd growth of its bush The

of its

priate

strong

in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying as
ers, retum capital to shareholders or issts new shares,

Balance Sheet to be managad capital:

3 retained profit and share capital.
tly s as to safeguard its abifity to continue as a g0ing concem and to optimise retums to our shareholders.

The capital structure of the company is
balance of key elements in order to mest jts strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and
sets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may

capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development

will take af

significant financing agreements,

fate steps in order to maintadn, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. company is not subject to financial covenants in any of its

The management monitors the retum on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders.

Dividends

JParticutars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interim Dividend paid during the year ended 31 March 2020 of INK 3.00 (31 March 2019 - INR. 10 ] 240,00 800,00
per fully paid share.

n addition to the above dividends, since the year end, the Company has anather interim dividend 8.00
|Rs. 0.10 per fully paid equity share for the Financial Year 2018-19

++--- The space below has been left blank
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24 SEGMENT INFORMATION:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Chail of the

The has identified one reportable segment “Container Freight Station” i.e.

based on the information reviewed by CODM. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabiiities, total cost incurred to acquire
segment assets, total amount of charge for depreciation during the year is as reflected in the Financial Statement as of and for the year ended 31 March 2020,

(a) Description of segments and principal activities
The C is d in busi of Container Freight Station. “Container Freight Station”

{including related transport), temporary storage of import / export laden and empty containers and cargo carried under customs control,

includ: user facilities located at various sea ports in India, offering services for handling

{b) Segment revenue
The company operates as a single The is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
|5egment Revenue from Total Revenue from Total
external -3 external B
e

(Containar Freight Station 3,316.91 3316.91 3,796.42 3,7596.42
Total Seament revenue 3,316.91 3,316.91 3,796.42 3,796.42

The company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is shown in the table below.

31 March 2020 31 March mu]

3,316.91 3,796.42
. .
3,316.91 3,796.42
-
The amount of its non-current assets broken down by location of the customers is shown in the table below.

[Forcurrent assets® 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
india 4,022.23 2,303.1
Outside India ——— —]
Total 4,022.23 2,303.11

ALl —

"Other than deferred tax assets

11 March 72020

lumber of C s from whose R

is more than 10% of total revenue 2

25 Related Party Transactions
25(a) Parent entitles

The Company is controlled by the following entity:

Place of

31 March 2020
incorporation

Type

31 March

2019

Gateway Distriparks Limited

Immediate and Ultimate
parent entity

India 100%

100%

25(b) Key management personnel
Non-Executive Directors
- Mr. Prem Kishan Dass Gupta
- Mr. Ishaan Gupta

Non Executive Independent Director
= Mr. Shabbir Hassanbhai

25(c) Transaction with parent entity

31 March 2020

I e of reach stacker
e

[Total

25(d) Key

e
31 March 2020

Short-term employee BEnanis

(Total
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25(e) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Holding Company Key Management Persannel
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

interim Dividend paid 248.00 800.00 .
Lﬁtﬁnu Fees to Mr. Prem Kishan Gupta - - 5.00 3.40
5itting fees to Mr Shabbir Hassanbhai - . 5.00 3.40
Sitting Fees to Mr. Ishaan Gupta - - 5.00 3.40
[Commisstan Payable to Mr Shabbir Hassanbhai - . 12.00 15.00

Hature of Transaction

25(f) The g balances are ding at the end of the reparting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

Key personnel /

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

[Commission Payable to Non- Executive Directors 8.26 10.32

25(f) Loans to/from related parties
No loan has been given/ received to/ from any related parties.

Note: In the opinion of the management, transactions reported hereln are on arm’s (ength basls.

2

o

CONTIGENT LIABILITIES

The Company had following contingent liabilities:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(a) Guarantees excluding financlal guarantees:
Barl.( Guarantees and Continuity Bonds executed in favor of The President of India through the Commissioners of 12,653.24 15,950.00
Excise and Customs

() Claims agafnst the company not acknowledge as debts
Disputed Income tax claims (including interest and penalty to the extent ascer
Refer below)

ot acinorTadiad
. ged as debts 1,094.73 953.43

(
L.anuty Commissioner of Income Tax had issued orders under Section 143(3) of the income Tax Act, 1961 of India (‘the Income Tax Act”), for the Assessment Years (A.Y,) 2011-2012 to 2014-15 disallowing the
claim of deduction by the Company under Section 80-IA(4)(i) of the Income Tax Act and other expenses and further issued notices of demand under Section 156 of the Income Tax Act for recovery o
additional income tax and interest aggregating Rs. 659.10 lakhs and initiated proceedings tm levy penalty.

Basis the appeal filed by the Company against the aforesaid order for A.Y. 2011-2012 to 2014-2015, Income Tax Appellate Tribunal had allowed the aforesaid deductions. The Deputy Commissioner of Income|
Tax has appealed with Honourable High Court af Andhra Pradesh for A.Y, 2011-12 & 2013-14. The Income Tax department has not gone on appeal against orders of A.Y. 201213 & 2014-15. Pending conelusion|
of the appeal, the Company has deposited Rs. 13 lakhs & Rs. 15 lakhs against demand for A.Y. 2011-12 & A.Y. 2012-13 till March 21, 2020.

For A.Y. 2017-18 , Company has received a demand u/s 156 of the Income tax Act 1961 for Rs. 435.63 lakhs against which Company has gone into appeal with CIT (A) Vishakhapatnam,

Basad on ITAT order for the A.Y. 2011-12 to 2014-15, which are in favour of the Company and the Honourable Dethi High Court judgment in the case of Container Corporation of India, the Company believes|
that it has a good case and are entitled to deduction under section 80-JA{4) (i) of the Income Tax Act 1961.

27 COMMITMENTS:
(2) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account of INR. NIL lakhs (31 March 2019: INR. NIL lakhs).

(b) Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method as per para C8(c)(ii) of
standard. Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate as on the date of transition and has
measured right of use asset an amount equal to lease liability.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition Lease Liabilities' of Rs. 1,870.12 lakhs and ‘Right-of-Use’ asset to equal amount.
The Company has leased Land in its operations, with lease term of 10-30 years,

Following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

i} Applied a single discount rate to a portfotio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with similar end date.

ii) Applied the exemption not to recognise Right-of -Use asset and Lease Liabilities with lease term of 12 months or less and leases with low value at the date of initial application.
1ii) Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or terminate the lease,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset,
Lease liabilities and Right-of-Use asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 8.5% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial application.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Particulars Land Total
Az at O Aprl 2% 1,870.12 1,870.12
131.01 131.01

1,739.11 1,739.11
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

[Particulars Tatal

LR

As at 01 Apnl 2019 1.87.12
| Addition *

Accretion of Interest 167.39

Paymant of lease liabilities 197.19

at 31 March 2020 1,840.32

1,799.93

Hon-currant 40.39

The adoption of standard has resulted in Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, operating lease expenses changed from rent to depreciation charge for Right-of-Use aset and finance cost for

interest accrued on lease liability. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on

has also in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash

per share. Ad

outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments Rs 197.19 Lakhs. Total Deferred Tax Income and Deferred Tax Assets increase by Rs. 28.15 Lakhs.

Reconciliation for the effects of the transactions on Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows :

Ad; to /(decrease) In 31 March 2020 Changes due to Ind AS 116 31 March 2020
profit before tax (comparable basis) increase/ (decrease) (as reported)
Operating expenses 1,672.40 - 1,672.40
(Other expenses 872.13 (197.19, 674.94
Finance cost 89.86 167.39 257.25
Depreciation and amortisation 199.92 131.01 330.93
[Profit before tax 2,834.31 101.21 2,935.52

The table betow provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 on an undiscounted basis:

31 March 2020 |

205.10
1,157.35
2,529.60

3,892.05

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the cusrent assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fail due.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

31 March 2020

Depreciation expense of right-af-use assats
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Total amount recognised In profit or loss

The space below has been left blank intenti
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28 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ETERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT (MSMED) ACT, 2006

29

30

3

32

A
W=

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been relied upon by the auditors.
According to such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 are as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier

- Principal amount

- Interest thereon -
i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, along with the amounts of the payment

made to the suppller beyond the appointed day.

fii) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this act.
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid.

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date L
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor.

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding
the status of suppliers under the MSMED.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The number of shares used in computing Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year.

— 31 March 2020 31 March 201
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basle/ diluted earnings per share 247.72 38.70
eighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic/ diluted earnings per share
80.00 80.00
(number lakhs )
otal basic/ diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company 3.10 0.48

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(a) Collateral against borrowings
Book debts and receivables, plant & machinery consisting of reach stackers, movable assets of the company are hypothecated as a security against Cash Credit as
at March 31, 2020,

Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the Company’s management has made an initial assessment of impact on business and financial risks on account
of COVID-19. Considering that the Company is in the business of providing inter model logistics services and is operating Container Freight Station (CFS), which is
considered under Essential Service, the management believes that the impact of this outbreak on the business and financial position of the Company will not be
significant. The management does not see any risks in the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on future
business operation of the Company may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements considering the uncertainty in
overall economic environment and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

The figures for the corresponding previous period have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gateway East India Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
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